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From: Swain, Jocelyn <jswain@cityoflancasterca.org>
Sent: Monday, May 20, 2019 4:01 PM
To: Victoria Boyd
Cc: Galo, Ramon; De La Cruz, Larissa; Dow, Chenin
Subject: Parks Information

Importance: High

Victoria, 

Please see below for the responses to your questions pertaining to park services in the City of Lancaster. 

1. The City of Lancaster has approximately 450 acres of parks within the City limits, totaling 13 parks. The City also
has several museums, community buildings and a baseball stadium which were not included in the total acres.
All of these facilities are located within a 5 mile radius of the plan area and serve the existing and any future
residents. Specifically, the parks and their locations are provided below. Additional information regarding each
of these parks can be found on the City’s website at https://www.cityoflancasterca.org/about-us/departments-
services/parks-recreation-arts/parks.

 American Heroes Park; 701 West Kettering Avenue
 Deputy Pierre Bain Park/Eastside Pool; 45045 North 5th Street East
 El Dorado Park; 44501 North 5th STreet East
 Forrest E. Hull Park, 2850 West Avenue L-12
 Jane Reynolds Park/Webber Pool; 716 Oldfield Street
 Sgt Steve Owen Memoral Park/Big 8 Softball Complex; 43063 10th Street West
 Lancaster National Soccer Center
 43000 30th Street East
 Mariposa Park; 45755 North Fig Avenue
 Prime Desert Woodland Preserve; 43201 35th Street West
 Rawley Duntley Park; 3334 West Avenue K
 Skytower Park; 43434 North Vineyard
 Tierra Bonita Park; 44910 27th Street East
 Whit Carter Park; 45635 Sierra Highway

2. The City has no plans at this time to develop additional parks. The City is in the process of installing a skateboard
park/area at the existing Jane Reynolds Park.  Some residential subdivisions are being developed with open
space/recreational amenities; however, these facilities would be for the residents of the specific development
and would be owned and maintained by a homeowner’s association.

3. The current ratio of parkland to resident in the City of Lancaster is 2.81 acres/1,000 population. It is not possible
to determine the ratio for the Plan area.

4. All developments within the Plan area would be required to pay the various park fees as established in the City’s
fee schedule.

5. In addition to the City Parks discussed above, Apollo is a County Park located within the City limits at 4555 West
Avenue G.  This is a 54-acre park with 3 man-made lakes. It was not included in the parkland ratio.

Please let me know if you need anything else. 

Jocelyn 
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Jocelyn Swain 
Principal Planner 
(661) 723-6249
jswain@cityoflancasterca.org
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August 26, 2019 

 

Meridian Consultants 
920 Hampshire Rd. Suite A-5 
Westlake Village, CA 91361 
 
 
Attn: Victoria Boyd 
Re: Medical Main Street Master Plan 
 
Dear Ms. Boyd, 
 
The Antelope Valley Union High School District (AVUHSD) is pleased to provide 
information for the project surrounding the Antelope Valley Hospital. We are the 
High School District serving students in grades 9 through 12, in the Lancaster, 
Palmdale and Littlerock areas. We also provide adult education services within our 
attendance boundaries.  
 
According to the vicinity map provided, our Lancaster High School (LHS), located 
at 44701 32nd Street West, will be the school of attendance per our current school 
site boundaries, and will be the school site primarily impacted by this project. Last 
year’s enrollment at LHS was 2,662, we do not have a current site student capacity 
report to provide. AVUHSD has contractual limits to the number of students per 
teacher both per class period and total served in the day. These numbers fluctuate 
depending on the subjects taught or the educational programs we are providing.  
 
AVUHSD does not currently have an overcrowding standard or policy. Should the 
need arise, we would follow our school board policy for the formation of such a 
standard. The following tables provide our student generation rates (SGR) per 
commercial construction and our current residential/commercial construction 
developer fee structure.  
 
 
 
  

 



   

The student generation rate (2018-19) associated with employment is based on 
the types of commercial/industrial designations, the following employment based 
SGRs for the Commercial/Industrial Development (CID) and are based on 1,000 
square feet of CID space: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AVUHSD currently levies a Level II Developer fee for residential construction. The 
commercial fees are set at $.16 cents per square foot of development with one 
exception, as noted below. 

 

Land USD 
Developer Fee/ 
Square Foot 

Level I Residential $0.99 
Level II Residential $2.18 
Level III Residential $4.36 
CID – Retail & Services $.16 
CID – Office $.16 
CID – Development & Research $.16 
CID – Industrial/Warehouse/Manufacturing $.16 
CID – Hospital $.16 
CID – Hotel/Motel $.16 
CID – Self-Storage $.11 

 

 

CID Category 
CID SGR 

(Grades 9-12) 
Retail & Services 0.0177 
Office 0.0277 
Research & Development 0.0241 
Hospital 0.0221 



   

Please contact my office with any additional questions or clarifications.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Brian Hawkins 

Assistant Superintendent Business Services 

 



Lancaster School District 
44711 NORTH CEDAR AVENUE, LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA 93534-3210 (661) 948-4661 

  Fax (661) 942-9452 
  TDD/Voice (661) 948-4661 x100 

    
 

 
June 4, 2019 
 
 
Ms. Victoria Boyd, Project Manager 
Meridian Consultants LLC 
vboyd@meridianconsultantsllc.com 
  
RE:  Medical Main Street Master Plan Project - Request for School Facility Information 
 
Dear Ms. Boyd: 
 
Please find the following information and supporting documents attached in response to your May 7, 2019 request: 
 

1. Lancaster School District elementary and middle schools within 5 miles of the Plan Area: 
Schools, Enrollment and Capacity – See attached Exhibit A 
 

2. Lancaster School District school overcrowding standards: 
Kindergarten through 6th grade standard classrooms are loaded at 25 students per classroom and 7th through 
8th grade classrooms are loaded at 27 students per classroom. 
 – See attached pages 8-9 of Lancaster School District/SFNA 2018 
 

3. Lancaster School District current student generation rates are calculated based on residential units within the 
District: 
Single Family Detached is .389, Multi-Family is .488, and Affordable is .667 – See attached page 11 of 
Lancaster School District/SFNA 2018 
 

4. Lancaster School District current school developer fees – See attached Exhibit B 
 

5. Lancaster School District currently does not have plans to develop new school facilities or expand existing 
school facilities. 

 
Should you have any questions, please contact me at (661)948-4661. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Larry Freise, Ed.D., 
Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
 
LF/ 
Attachments 
 

LARRY FREISE, ED D. 
Assistant Superintendent of 

Business Services 



Lancaster School District Exhibit A
44711 North Cedar Avenue
Lancaster, CA  93534

School Address Enrolled Capacity Enrolled Capacity

1 Amargosa Creek Middle School 6th-8th 44333 27th Street West 960            1,537         0 0

2 Desert View Elementary School K-6th 1555 West Avenue H-10 709            1,305         58 62

3 Discovery Elementary School K-5th 44910 17th Street East 800            1,247         0 0

4 El Dorado Elementary School K-5th 361 East Pondera Street 680            1,189         96 96

5 Endeavour Middle School 6th-8th 43755 45th Street West 720            1,247         0 0

6 Fulton & Alsbury Academy of Arts & Engineering Middle School 6th-8th 831 East Avenue K2 415            400            0 0

7 Jack Northrop Elementary School K-5th 835 East Avenue K-4 741            975            44 44

8 Joshua Elementary School K-5th 43926 2nd Street East 581            1,392         68 68

9 Lincoln Elementary School K-5th 44021 15th Street East 733            1,102         96 96

10 Linda Verde Elementary School K-5th 44924 5th Street East 861            1,160         188 180

11 Linda Verde Center - Special Education K-8th 44920 5th Street East 36               145            0 0

12 Mariposa Computer Science Magnet School K-6th 737 West Avenue H-6 547            1,189         44 44

13 Miller Elementary School K-6th 43420 22nd Street West 788            1,247         0 0

14 Monte Vista Elementary School K-5th 1235 West Kettering Street 768            1,189         48 48

15 Nancy Cory Elementary School K-6th 3540 West Avenue K-4 817            1,189         96 96

16 New Vista Middle School 6th-8th 753 East Avenue K-2 924            1,537         0 0

17 Piute Middle School 6th-8th 425 East Avenue H-11 907            1,479         0 0

18 Sierra Elementary School K-5th 747 West Avenue J-12 644            1,392         166 160

19 Sunnydale Elementary School K-6th 1233 West Avenue J-8 649            1,218         0 0

20 West Wind Elementary School K-5th 44044 36th Street West 758            986            44 44

21 LAVA - Lancaster Alternative & Virtual Academies K-8th 44034 13th Street West 122            200            0 0

22 Crossroads Community Day School & Leadership Academy K-8th 44310 Hardwood Avenue 91               214            0 0

Total 14,251       23,539       948            938            

K through 8th Early Childhood Education

Schools, Enrollment and Capacity
June 2019

C:\Users\rbastian\Desktop\Apx_I_A_schools within 5 miles



Lancaster School District Exhibit B
44711 North Cedar Avenue
Lancaster, CA  93534

Type
Residential Development 3.18$       per square foot Effective 11/06/2018 for 12 months or less

Residential Additions over 500 sq.ft. 3.18$       per square foot Effective 11/06/2018 for 12 months or less

Senior Only Housing Complex 0.45$       per square foot Effective 01/27/2019 for 24 months or less

Commercial and Industrial Development 0.45$       per square foot Effective 01/27/2019 for 24 months or less

Mini-Storage Development 0.06$       per square foot Effective 01/27/2019 for 24 months or less

Current Developer Fees
June 2019

Fee Per Square Foot Effective Period

C:\Users\rbastian\Desktop\Apx_I_B_Schools - Lancaster School District Current Developer Fees June 2019




